
 

 

                                     URBANA CITY COUNCIL 

                     REGULAR SESSION MINUTES – JUNE 11, 2013 
Council President Marty Hess called the Urbana City Council Regular Session Meeting 

of Tuesday, June 11, 2013, to order at 7:00PM, in Court Chambers / The Municipal 

Building. 

Attendance: All Council Members were present with the exception of Mr. Robert Thorpe. 

City Staff – Mayor Bill Bean; Mr. Kerry Brugger, Director of Administration; Mr. Lee 

Williams, Finance Director; Mr. Chad Hall; Police Chief Matt Lingrell; and Mr. Chris 

Stokes (*Mr. Doug Crabill was absent) 

Roll Call & Pledge of Allegiance 

Brief Presentation  

Mr. Ben Vollrath (Customer Business Manager, DP&L) addressed Council regarding 

“Summer Storm Preparations.” Mr. Vollrath distributed an ‘Energy Savers Booklet,’ and 

a fact sheet on ‘Top 10 Tips for Saving Energy in Your Home,’ while thanking Council 

for the opportunity to present. 

Mr. Vollrath spoke about: Ongoing Reliability Programs, Advance Weather Alerts to 

Community Officials, Ramping Up of Additional Manpower, Mutual Aid Partnerships, 

and Regular Communication (with EMA’s, Major Accounts, and Community 

Officials/Public Safety Personnel via telephone/email).  

Regarding ‘Storm Readiness’ Mr. Vollrath outlined restoration efforts in terms of 

prioritization of outages (Emergency Safety Situations, Critical Facilities -see file, and 

work from the largest to the smallest outages). He noted that branch tree trimming can be 

done by the company prior to storms, but after storms residents are encouraged to bring 

fallen branches to curbs and check the City schedule for pickup. 

He relayed ‘Customer Tips’ inclusive of reporting outages to 1-877-468-8243 or online 

www.dpandl.com/outage 

Outage maps can also be found at the website. He stated that after an outage, some 

outages may require an electrician. The customer is responsible for: the meter box, 

service entrance cable, and masthead. 

Mr. Vollrath cautioned that residents should assume downed lines are energized and 

dangerous. He encouraged preventative maintenance, and preparation of storm 

kits/emergency plans. 

Mr. Al Evans wished DP&L ‘good luck’ with the storm expected Wednesday evening. 

Mr. Dwight Paul praised DP&L for the work they do, and noted DP&L as ‘very 

responsive.’ 

Approval of Minutes 

Mr. Evans moved to approve the UCC Regular Session Minutes (May 28, 2013); Mr. 

Doug Hoffman seconded. Motion carried without objection. 

Communications 

There were no Communications at this meeting. 

Administrative Reports – Board of Control 

There were no Board of Control items at this meeting. 

Citizen Comments 

Mr. Todd Tracy (Urbana Youth Sports), together with Ms. Cheryl Wade (Pool Manager 

and Secretary with Urbana Youth Sports), and Mr. Chris Stokes (City Superintendent of 

Recreation) addressed Council regarding the upcoming ‘Inaugural Sports Festival’ 



 

 

scheduled for Saturday, July 13, 2013 at the Park. Friday, July 12, 2013 was noted as the 

beginning of the Festival - with an official Mayoral kickoff planned for 7:45AM on the 

Saturday the13
th

.   

Mr. Tracy spoke of the Park’s attributes/special features, and touched upon the upcoming 

construction of the sand Volleyball Court (as well as Mr. Stokes’ idea to revitalize the old 

horse shoe pits). 

The theme of the July Festival, “Play Like a Kid,” will feature events inclusive of: Safety 

Town/ Officer Stanley, (Police Division) Bicycle Rodeo, (Fire Division) Games, a band, 

an adult softball tournament, Little Climber football, YMCA tennis tournament, 5K run, 

Bassmasters, ODNR Division of Watercraft, a dunk tank, “Buckeyeman,” vendors, and 

much more. Proceeds from the event will go toward improving facilities at the Park. 

Mr. Tracy spoke of a future ‘dream’ to build a gymnasium. 

Contact information was given as www.urbanayouthsports.com , or #652-5111. 

The trio presented an example of signage to promote the event, and said there would also 

be banners created. Sponsors for the event were mentioned, while Mr. Tracy invited 

others (sponsors/vendors) to join in. 

Mr. Dwight Paul noted his previous involvement with Urbana Youth Sports, and stated, 

“The event is a ‘great idea—hats off to you—I’m excited to see how it goes!” 

Mr. Tracy cited the work of 100 volunteers with UYS, and thanked Mr. Paul and Mr. 

Hoffman for dedication to the organization. 

Mr. Hoffman said, “More volunteers are needed.” 

Mrs. Virginia Smith agreed with Mr. Paul’s remarks. 

Mr. Eugene Fields complimented the trio saying, “What you put your hands to—just 

explodes!” 

Mr. Paul asked whether the Pool would be part of the Festival. 

Mr. Stokes indicated there will be a public ‘Pool Party’ on Friday, July 12
th

. 

Ordinances and Resolutions 

Third Reading – 

ORDINANCE NO. 4395 – (*See File for Copy) 

Mr. Hoffman moved to place ORDINANCE NO. 4395 on the business floor for 

discussion and passage; Mr. Paul seconded. 

Roll call vote to approve: Mr. Hoffman, yes; Mr. Fields, yes; Mr. Evans, yes; Mr. Paul, 

yes; Mrs. Smith, yes  (5-0) 

Discussion – 

Mr. Paul asked whether ‘the numbers are public, or are posted.’ 

Mr. Kerry Brugger indicated the numbers will be posted on the website when the 

contracts are complete. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4396 – (*See File for Copy) 

Mrs. Smith moved to place ORDINANCE NO. 4396 on the business floor for discussion 

and passage; Mr. Paul seconded. 

Roll call vote to approve: Mr. Fields, yes; Mr. Evans, yes; Mr. Paul, yes; Mrs. Smith, yes; 

Mr. Hoffman, yes    (5-0) 

ORDINANCE NO. 4397 – (*See File for Copy) 

Mr. Evans moved to place ORDINANCE NO. 4397 on the business floor for discussion 

and passage; Mr. Fields seconded. 



 

 

Roll call vote to approve: Mr. Evans, yes; Mr. Paul, yes; Mrs. Smith, yes; Mr. Hoffman, 

yes; Mr. Fields, yes   (5-0) 

ORDINANCE NO. 4398 – (*See File for Copy) 

Mrs. Smith moved to place ORDINANCE NO. 4398 on the business floor for discussion 

and passage; Mr. Evans seconded. 

Roll call vote to approve: Mr. Paul, yes; Mrs. Smith, yes; Mr. Hoffman, yes; Mr. Fields, 

yes; Mr. Evans, yes   (5-0) 

ORDINANCE NO. 4399 – (*See File for Copy) 

Mr. Paul moved to place ORDINANCE NO. 4399 on the business floor for discussion 

and passage; Mr. Fields seconded. 

Roll call vote to approve: Mrs. Smith, yes; Mr. Hoffman, yes; Mr. Fields, yes; Mr. Evans, 

yes; Mr. Paul, yes   (5-0) 

 

Second Reading – 

RESOLUTION NO. 2394 – 

(Read and declared a Second Reading) 

Mr. Evans and Mr. Paul each sought clarification from Mr. Brugger regarding the 

purpose/process of this Resolution, and again Mr. Brugger defined the Resolution the 

same as in the previous Regular Session. Mr. Brugger emphasized the process is a 

deduction (the required amount) from the paycheck for the pension, with a change in July 

over the next 3 years. 

Mr. Fields thanked Mr. Brugger for his thorough explanation. 

RESOLUTION NO. 2395 – 

(Read and declared a Second Reading) 

Mr. Paul asked Mr. Brugger if the numbers were the same. Mr. Brugger replied 

affirmatively, and verified that this Resolution is the same as Resolution No. 2394 (just a 

different entity). 

ORDINANCE NO. 4400 – 

(Read and declared a Second Reading) 

No discussion. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4401 – 

(Read and declared a Second Reading) 

No discussion. 

 

First Reading – 

ORDINANCE NO. 4402 – 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE SCHEDULE OF CHARGES AND FEES 

WITHIN CHAPTER 931.15 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

URBANA 

(Read and declared a First Reading) 

Discussion – 

Mr. Chad Hall outlined the schedule of charges and fees - domestic/commercial, in 

defining a change to increase rates in increments over the next 3 years (January 1, 2014; 

January 1, 2015; January 1, 2016). Mr. Hall said the last increase was in November 2010 

at 15%. 



 

 

He said the rate increase is to line up debt repayment for the new Waste Water Treatment 

Plant upgrade. 

Mr. Brugger concurred with Mr. Hall’s statements, and said that one of the requirements 

that will allow the City to move forward with the loan application is to set up a schedule 

to ‘start making payments when they come due.’ The beginning of the schedule was 

noted as January 2014. The schedule will assist with preparation (and is a requirement) 

for application completion. Mr. Brugger stressed the importance of keeping the public 

informed with both water and sewer changes. 

Mr. Paul sought clarification regarding percentage increases. 

Mr. Lee Williams replied, “Fifteen in 2014, seven and a half in 2015, and eight in 2016.” 

Mr. Paul asked whether the increases were ‘just for the improvement.’ 

Mr. Williams affirmed, “That revenue steam is projected, and goes in the Capital Fund.” 

Mr. Brugger said, “Where you see it was broken down into two columns…your 

Maintenance and Operating stays flat at this point…and then they want to see basically 

how we’re going to fund the payback.” 

Mr. Hall noted, “We do not expect to see any additional staffing.” 

“To clarify something—Chad will actually see a little bit of savings, because what he 

won’t have to do maintenance work that currently has to be done on the aging facility,” 

said Mr. Williams. 

Mr. Hoffman indicated the rate increases are a necessary, and responsible measure. 

RESOLUTION NO. 2396 – 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE TAX BUDGET OF THE CITY OF URBANA, 

OHIO, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2014; SUBMITTING 

THE SAME TO THE COUNTY AUDITOR 

(Read and declared a First Reading) 

Discussion – 

Mr. Williams explained this Resolution:  

“This is the…a…they call it the Tax Budget, but it’s a projection of the revenue for next 

year. It’s due to the Budget Commission by July 20
th

…so there will be 3 readings…there 

will be 2 in June, and then 1 in July. The numbers for this year (2014) are not that much 

different than they have been on the run rate basis, and that’s what we used these first 4 

months of 2013 to project next year…there isn’t a whole lot of difference between the 2 

years. The only thing that’s of a major consequence is that we lost the Estate Tax for next 

year, so on a revenue stream basis that’s roughly $125,000 that won’t happen (or won’t 

repeat itself) for next year.  

Other than that I think everything else is pretty much static…the only fund balance that 

shows a significant change is Sewer, and that’s getting Chad set up for his…that payment 

schedule to 2016…” 

Mr. Paul sought information regarding the Casino Tax. 

Mr. Williams relayed, “We don’t get any. I don’t know if it changed—we don’t qualify 

for it.” 

Mr. Fields expressed appreciation to Mr. Williams for his detailed report. 

Miscellaneous Business 

Mr. Fields       -Nothing at this time 

Mrs. Smith      -Nothing at this time 

Mr. Hoffman   -Nothing at this time 



 

 

Mr. Paul         -Nothing at this time 

Mr. Evans      -Noted that business owners on No. Main St. have shared that tractor  

                        trailers are leaving their rigs in parking lots over the weekend(s) 

                        Police Chief Matt Lingrell said that there are signs posted identifying 

                        restricted parking areas; Chief Lingrell encouraged those businesses 

                        that have not put up signage, to do so if they want to address the pro- 

                        blem properly…but also encouraged a telephone call to Police Division if   

                        issues/challenges exist 

                        Mr. Evans asked (after conversations with some business owners), “Are 

                        there plans in the future to revisit regulations/restrictions in The Overlay 

                        District?”  

                        Mr. Brugger replied, “I don’t know that there are any plans, but there can 

                        be.”  

                        Mr. Evans stated that he spoke with an owner that has recently opened a 

                        business, and the owner is not happy with additional costs that drove up  

                        the initial cost of the operation; Said he felt it is prudent for ‘someone  

                        from the Zoning Department (or the Administration) to reach out to this 

                        business owner.’ 

                        Mr. Evans said he would give Mr. Brugger the information after the Meet- 

                        ing. 

                        “See me after the Meeting,” Mr. Brugger said.  

                        Mayor Bill Bean said the Administration / Planning Commission would 

                        review the situation (The Overlay District), and emphasized that Urbana is   

                        striving to be ‘more business friendly.’ 

Chief Lingrell – 

                        Mentioned the GOBA event with activities kicking off on June 14
th

; Noted 

                        the hard work of Amy Brinker, Marcia Bailey, and the subcommittee. 

                        Chief Lingrell encouraged citizens to come out and enjoy the event, and 

                        outlined traffic rerouting on Saturday (the 15
th

); Said some of the traffic 

                        rerouting is causing some discomfort, but added that this is for the protect- 

                        tion of the bicyclists; Spoke of the opportunities for retail sales 

                        Said during the 2010 event, numerous bicyclists stopped to talk to him  

                        about Urbana; Noted the bicyclists will return briefly on June 22
nd

 

Mr. Chris Stokes – 

                         Nothing at this time 

Mr. Chad Hall – 

                         Nothing at this time 

Mr. Lee Williams – 

                         Nothing at this time 

Mr. Brugger   -Announced June 12
th

 as the first of eight spray applications for mosquito 

                         treatment within the city limits; Hours were noted as 11PM-4AM 

                         (June 12 & June 26 are the scheduled applications for this month—other 

                         dates are posted on the website) 

                         Noted, “It is intriguing to watch that every department in the City has  

                         been touched by the GOBA event at some point—everybody seems to   

                         have some piece of this—that they’re working with the group trying to  



 

 

                           accommodate…the group of 2,500+ that’s going to come through. I  

                           commend everyone for their efforts…in staying with it…staying  

                           focused…” 

                           Discussed the intersection of E. Lawn & Boyce St. “The westbound traf- 

                           fic on Boyce that turns right, and goes northbound on E. Lawn…there’s 

                           a telephone pole right on the corner of that (it sits right on the curb)… 

                           looking at the aerial of that intersection, everything’s kind of offset 

                           there…it doesn’t quite allow for a good swing…it’s more prominent 

                           when there’s school (and the buses are trying to make that right turn… 

                           trucks, trailors, farm equipment). We modified that stop bar on the 

                           southbound lane of E. Lawn…pushing it back, and allowing people to 

                           make that swing…” he said. 

                           Mr. Brugger said the City would look at the timing, and try to  

                           adjust the yellow light 

                           Discussed glitches with the local access channel in the last 10 days or so; 

                           working on ‘sorting it out to get/maintain a solid signal’  

Mayor Bill Bean- 

                           Also reviewed the GOBA event; Said Saturday at 3PM is when the  

                           GOBA will begin; Announced the 6PM parade beginning at the Fair- 

                           grounds; Announced Sunday (June 16
th

/Father’s Day), the Lion’s Club 

                           will conduct the ‘Pancake Breakfast’ starting at 5AM; Bicycle riders 

                           will leave the Fairgrounds between 5AM & 10AM. 

Council President Hess – 

                            Noted Councilman Robert Thorpe is ‘doing better, but is not here’ 

                            Said the Charter says Council has 45 days to select a Council Member  

                            to fill the current vacancy; Visited the Board of Elections for details, 

                            and mentioned the Ohio Revised Code; Told Council the cost is be- 

                            tween $3,000-$5,000 per precinct to have an election; Noted the person 

                            who fills the position will have to run in the next election. 

                            There was initial mention that this issue could be addressed in 

                            Executive Session, but Council President Hess refuted saying that 

                            Council can discuss this item in open session 

                            (*See ‘Proclamation: Notice of Urbana City Council Vacancy’ posted 

                            in the Urbana City Council Office.) 

                            Mr. Evans sought the recommendation of the Law Director, and said 

                            the recent newspaper article did not state the same thing that Council  

                            President Hess was saying concerning the proper procedure to move  

                            forward 

                            “So you’re not going to consider the recommendation of the Law  

                            Director?” asked Mr. Evans. 

                            Mr. Evans said the ‘voters voted on electing (not appointing),’ and in- 

                            sisted upon direction from the Law Director  

                            Mr. Paul said Council has until July 15
th

 to get the situation resolved. 

                            Mr. Fields pressed for a Work Session on June 18
th

 at 7PM, and by full 

                            agreement of Council the Work Session was set 

                            Mr. Evans again said he would like the Law Director present. 



 

 

                            Mr. Hoffman sought clarification regarding election procedure. 

                            “You don’t have to have a Special Election,” said Mr. Evans, pointing 

                             to the Regular Election (in November).  

                             Council President Hess defined the position as non-partisan, and 

                             said petitions to run in the election must be completed by August 7 

                             Mr. Paul sought clarification on appointing before the 45 days have 

                             expired; Council President Hess indicated more discussion would  

                             take place at the June 18
th

 Work Session 

 

 

Adjournment 

Mr. Fields moved to adjourn the UCC Regular Session Meeting at approximately 

8:10PM; Mr. Evans seconded. All were in favor of adjournment. 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________            _____________________________ 

Council Clerk                                                            Council President 

 
June 11, 2013 Minutes.doc                             Urbana City Council                                                       Page 7 of 7  

. 

     

    

 
 


